
City of Plymouth Plan Commission 
 

 
Members: Please notify us if you are unable to attend the meeting.  
 

Chairman; Mayor Don Pohlman 
 
Members: 
Jane Meyer 
Jeremy Schellin 
Greg Hildebrand 
Ron Nicolaus 
John Wyatt 
Justin Schmitz 
 
         
The City of Plymouth Plan Commission will have a meeting on Thursday, August 1, 2024 at 6:00 PM in Room 
305, City Hall, and Plymouth, WI.  
 
The agenda will be as follows: 
 

1.) Approval of Minutes from July 11, 2024. 
 

2.) Extraterritorial Map seeking approval: W6387 Karpathy Lane, Plymouth. Lot division to 
create 3 parcels. Brath (enclosure) 

 
3.) Parcel(s) seeking recommendation to City Council for rezoning: parcels; 

59271821046, and 59271821047. BEING A PART OF THE NE ¼ AND THE SE ¼ OF 
THE NW ¼ OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, SITUATED IN 
THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH, SHEBOYGAN COUNTY, WISCONSIN. Located generally 
south of Eastern Ave, west side of S. Pleasant View Road. Sheboygan County Economic 
Development Corporation/Doudna (enclosure)  

 
4.) Communication – Letters, E-mails, or reports Related to the Plan Commission 

(Chairman, Secretary, Plan Commission Members, City of Plymouth Staff/Alderpersons) 
 

 
It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may 
be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather information. No action will be taken by any governmental body at 
the above stated meeting other than the governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice. Please note that, 
upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids 
and services.  For additional information or to request this service, contact City of Plymouth ADA Coordinator Leah 
Federwisch, located in the Plymouth Utilities office at 900 County Road PP, Plymouth, WI or call 920-893-3853 
 
 



 
 
City of Plymouth  Telephone: (920) 893-3741 
128 Smith St. – PO Box 107  Facsimile: (920) 893-9590 
Plymouth, WI  53073-0107  e-mail:  inspectorpete@plymouthgov.com 
 
 
 
July 11, 2024 
 
 
Members present: Chairman Don Pohlman, Jane Meyer, Jeremy Schellin, Greg Hildebrand, Ron Nicolaus, John 
Wyatt, Justin Schmitz 
 
Absent: None 
 
Staff Present; Administrator Tim Blakeslee, Fire Chief Ryan Pafford  
 
The Plan Commission meeting was called to order by Chairman Pohlman at 6:00 PM.  
 

1.) Approval of Minutes from June 6, 2024; Motion to approve the minutes from the June 6, 2024 
meeting made by Hildebrand, and seconded by Nicolaus. Item of correction made by Member Wyatt to 
insert the correct date of June 6, 2024 in lieu of May 2, 2024. Scheuerman to make correction on official 
minutes. On the roll all voted Aye. 
 

2.) Site Plan Seeking Approval: 1 Persnickety Place aka Sargento Foods Inc seeking approval 
of a site plan for a Disposal Room to be constructed. Jordan Schussler from Sargento presented 
their intentions to the Commission. The current structure to be replaced with a full footing and 
foundation built structure. Chairman Pohlman queried staff regarding any concerns about fire protection 
and impervious surfaces. No staff concerns were brought forward. Motion to approve by Nicolaus and 
seconded by Wyatt. On the roll all voted yes to approve, with Member Schellin abstaining. 

 
3.) Site Plan Seeking Approval: Site is 59271827945 (West of the Wal*Mart Store) Wangard 

Property Acquisitions LLC is seeking approval for developing a site; Mark Lake from Wangard 
Development presented the project to the Commission. The proposal is being phased, into two phases. 
Phase I would be 26 unit, two story buildings starting with 4 buildings. These buildings would be 
comprised of 1, 2, and 3 bedroom units. The site currently presents some challenges with fill dirt that 
was deposited from a previous development. The hope is to move some and work around to avoid 
retaining walls. Parking will be provided fort tenants as well visitors. Lake mentioned that the color 
scheme is very close to the “2025” colors that would be utilized for this development. 156 units would 
be the start, and then as they fill more units would be brought on line. Chairman Pohlman asked Fire 
Chief Pafford about Fire Access. Pafford stated that staff has been working closely with Wangard and 
any concerns or interests have been addressed. Administrator Blakeslee stated that the Stormwater study 
would be part of this overall approval. Other items to be considered for the site plan approval are as 
follows; A traffic impact analysis is being reviewed, which is actually required for a project of this size, 
Final Private Roadway design would need to be approved, A development agreement would need to be 
drafted and approved, and the sewer, and water system would need to be approved as they will be owned 
and maintained by Plymouth Utilities. Member Schellin inquired as to a timeline sequence. Starting 
sequentially, four buildings would be started, and around July of 2025 open and occupied. Construction 
commencement would be about September/October of 2024. Member Hildebrand inquired of the 
Wangard members to consider naming a street after Mayor Pohlman. Member Schmitz inquired as to if 
this development is “family friendly” as in a good place to raise children. Dave Rider stated typically 

mailto:inspectorpete@plymouthgov.com


they only see an average of 8 to 10 children per 100 living units. Member Nicolaus inquired as to if the 
units are “senior friendly”. The response advised that these are not senior units, but accessibility issues 
are addressed through the Building Code. Motion to approve was made by Schellin, and seconded by 
Nicolaus. On the roll all voted yes to approve. 

 
4.)  Ordinance seeking recommendation to Council; Discussion and potential referral to City 

Council on modifications of Section 13-2 regarding Floodplain Zoning. Administrator Blakeslee 
explained to the Commission that the City needs to adopt a Floodplain Ordinance, as an update. The 
DNR has updated the Plate Maps, but Plymouth’s maps remain unchanged. The primary consideration 
for the City is to consider the adoption of Act 175. Act 175 allows a building within the Flood Plain 
regulated area to make repairs/improvements exceeding 50% of the current assessed value. Motion to 
recommend approval to City Council made by Hildebrand and seconded by Schellin. On the roll all 
voted to recommend. 

 
5.) Communication – Letters, E-mails, or reports Related to the Plan Commission 

(Chairman, Secretary, Plan Commission Members, City of Plymouth Staff/Alderpersons) 
Building Inspector Scheuerman shared a diagram of the previously approved Auto Zone project. This 
diagram depicted the path that the delivery truck would be taking to drop off inventory and orders to the 
store. The initial concern from the June 6 meeting was that a large truck may obstruct Eastern Ave 
traffic. 
 
Motion to adjourn made by Nicolaus and seconded by Schellin.  

 





















 

 
 
 
City of Plymouth 
128 Smith St. - P.O. Box 107 
Plymouth, WI  53073-0107 
  
 

 
  
 

 
 
 

Telephone: (920) 893-3745 
Facsimile: (920) 893-0183 

     Web Site:        plymouthgov.com 
 
 

 
DATE:  May 28, 2024 

TO:  Plan Commission  
 
FROM: Tim Blakeslee, City Administrator/Utilities Manager   
 
RE:  Rezoning - Part of Parcel No. 59271821046 and 59271821047 currently Zoned as R-4, Multi-

Family Residential, Seeking R-5 Traditional Neighborhood District 
 

 
 
Background:  
Parcels No. 59271821046 and 59271821047 
are located directly south of Fairfield Plaza and 
east of Plymouth High School. The Sheboygan 
County Economic Development Corporation 
(SCEDC) is requesting a Rezoning for a 
proposed single family home development. A 
draft site plan for the upcoming development 
will be discussed in more detail at an upcoming 
plan commission meeting.  
 
Rezoning: Parcels No. 59271821046 and 
59271821047 are currently R-4, Multi-Family 
Residential. The SCEDC requests that both 
parcels be rezoned to R-5 Traditional 
Neighborhood District. 
 
The properties to the north are the Fairfield 
Plaza shopping center. The property to the west is Plymouth High School.  The property to the south is a multi-
family development for older adults. The property to the east is commercial (Pick n’ Save Shopping Center), a 
retention basin, multi-family apartments, and the Vintage Neighborhood (R-5).  
 
The Comprehensive Plan current and future land use map project this property as planned for residential.   
 
Given the adjacent property uses and consistency with the comprehensive plan, Staff supports this request to 
use the R-5 district. 
 
Recommendation:  
Recommend the Rezoning Request as presented to the Common Council for approval. 
 
Attachments: 

• SCEDC Application Attachments 



Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH, WISCONSIN 
Ordinance No. _____ of 2024 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 13-1-21, ZONING MAP,  
OF THE CITY OF PLYMOUTH BY CHANGING PROPERTY FROM  

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL TO TRADITIONAL NEIGHBORHOOD 

WHEREAS, the Sheboygan County Economic Development Corporation has requested 
an amendment to the City of Plymouth Zoning Map from R-4, Multi-Family Residential District, 
to R-5, Traditional Neighborhood District, for real property lying west of South Pleasant View 
Road and being Parcel Nos. 59271-821046 and 59271-821047 comprising 32.083 acres as 
shown on the Zoning Exhibit map and described on the Legal Description, both attached hereto, 
(the "Property"); and 

WHEREAS, on August 1, 2024, the City of Plymouth Plan Commission recommended 
that the Common Council rezone the Property to R-5, Traditional Neighborhood District; and  

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Common Council on _____________, 
2024, after duly publishing notice of such hearing, pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 66.1001(4) and 
62.23(7)(d); and 

WHEREAS, the Common Council has determined that amendments to the Zoning Map 
will promote the orderly development of land in the City of Plymouth. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Plymouth, Wisconsin, does 
hereby ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Amending Code.  Section 13-1-21, Zoning Map, of the City of Plymouth 
Zoning Code is hereby amended so that the map entitled “Zoning Map, Plymouth, Wisconsin” 
designates the classification of the Property, as more specifically described on the Zoning 
Exhibit, R-5, Traditional Neighborhood District. 

Section 2. Severability.  Should any portion of this Ordinance or the affected 
Municipal Code Section be declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder shall not be affected.  

Section 3. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect the day after publication. 

Enacted on __________________, 2024. 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

By: 
DONALD O. POHLMAN, Mayor 

Date: _________________________, 2024 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE OF ENACTMENT 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly enacted by the City of Plymouth 
Common Council and approved by the Mayor on the dates indicated above. 

 
 

Dated: ____________________, 2024  ____________________________ 
ANNA VOIGT, Clerk 

 
 

9431\227649.docx 
 





 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

 
 
 

Parcel Nos. 59271821046 and 59271821047:  
 
That part of the East 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 26, Town 15, North, Range 21 East, in 
the City of Plymouth, County of Sheboygan, State of Wisconsin, described as follows: 
 
Commencing at a point in the East line of the Northwest 1/4 being 100 feet South of the 
Southeast corner of Tract 2 of Certified Survey Map recorded in Volume 6 of Certified Survey 
Maps, Pages 31 and 32; thence continuing along said East line South 0° 24’ East 1,864.40 feet 
to a point which is 180.00 feet Northerly of the center of Section 26; thence South 89° 37’ 53” 
West 1,316.90 feet; thence North 0° 20’ 52” West 1,875.77 feet; thence North 89° 54’ 31” East 
1,315.21 feet to the point of beginning.  
 
EXCEPTING THEREFROM the following: 
 
1. That part taken for highway purposes in Volume 814, Page 579. 
 
2. That part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 26, Town 15 North, Range 21 
East, described as follows:  Commencing at the North 1/4 corner of said Section; thence South 
89° 54’ 31” West 676.68 feet; thence South 0° 20’ 52” East 309.00 feet; thence North 89° 54’ 
31” East 180.00 feet; thence South 0° 20’ 52” East 269.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence 
continuing South 0° 20’ 52” East 90.00 feet; thence North 89° 54’ 31” West 818.00 feet; thence 
North 0° 20’ 52” West 90.00 feet; thence South 89° 54’ 31” East 818.00 feet to the beginning. 
 
3. That part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 26, Town 15 North, Range 21 
East, in the Town of Plymouth, County of Sheboygan, State of Wisconsin, described as follows: 
Commencing at the center of said Section 26; thence North 0° 15’ 07” West along the East line 
of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 26, 180.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing 
North 0° 15’ 07” West along said East line 265.00 feet; thence South 89° 48’ 27” West 1,317.05 
feet to the West line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section 26; thence South 
0° 11’ 19” East along said West line 265.00 feet to the North line of a Certified Survey Map 
recorded in Volume 12, Page 55 and 56; thence North 89° 48’ 27” East along said North line 
1,317.34 feet (recorded as North 89° 37’ 53” East 1,316.90) to the point of beginning. 
 
4. All that part of the described premises lying Easterly of the Westerly right-of-way line of 
Pleasant View Road. 
 
 
 
 
















	Plan Commission Agenda 8/1/24
	Item 1. Plan Commission Minutes 7-11
	Item 2. Extraterritorial Map Seeking Approval (W6387 Karpathy Ln)
	Item 3. Parcels seeking recommendation to City Council for Rezoning (Parcels 59271821046 and 59271821047



